
 

Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting  October 15, 2014  Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
GRISWOLD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING  
APPROVED MINUTES  OCTOBER 15, 2014  GRISWOLD TOWN HALL 
 

I. REGULAR MEETING (7:00 P.M.) 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman Thomas Giard, Jr. called this regular meeting of the Griswold Economic Development Commission to 
order at 7:00 p.m. 

2. Roll Call 

Present:  Chairman  Thomas  Giard,  Jr.,  Paul  Lach,  Charlotte  Geer,  Christopher  Goodenough,  Town  Planner 
Mario J. Tristany and Recording Secretary Donna Szall 

3. Determination of Quorum 

T. Giard stated that there was a quorum for this regular meeting of the Economic Development Commission. 

4. Approval of Minutes 

A. Approval of minutes of Regular Meeting of September 17, 2014 

T. Giard asked for any corrections or omissions on the minutes. C. Geer stated that at the end of page 2 it says 
M. Tristany; it should be removed. 

MOTION:  P. Lach moved to approve the minutes as presented.  C. Geer seconded the motion. All were in favor. 
The motion was carried. 

5. Public Comment 

T. Giard  asked  if  there was  anyone  in  the  audience who would  like  to make public  comment. He  asked  Jim 
Barney if he had any comments.  J. Barney stated no. There was no one who wished to make a public comment.    

6. Matters Presented for Consideration 

A. Discussion and update of a Town of Griswold Commercial Small Business Revolving Fund. 

T. Giard  stated  that  he  did  not  attend  the Wednesday meeting. He  asked M.  Tristany  stated  this  item was 
discussed.  M. Tristany stated no, it was not.  T. Giard explained that the Board of Selectmen wanted to hold a 
workshop to discuss revolving loan fund at a later date.  He stated that there would be a number of items such 
as hiring a realtor to represent the town properties and the revolving loan fund. This workshop will be open to 
the public.   M. Tristany stated that to  let Donna know so that she can  let the other members know.   T. Giard 
stated that this will be a morning meeting and asked what days were good for members to attend this meeting.  
P. Lach and C. Geer stated that a Thursday or Friday was good for them. C. Goodenough stated that he works 
days so would not be able to attend. 

B. Discussion and update of STEAP grant downtown streetscape improvements 

T. Giard asked for an update on the STEAP grant for 2015. M. Tristany stated that  it  is completed and he was 
waiting of the resolution from the Town for BOS approval. He stated that the BOS tabled the resolution to the next



 

Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting  October 15, 2014  Page 2 of 4 
 

meeting.  He will let the members know when this resolution will be discussed by the BOS so that members can 
attend to support their approval of the resolution.   M. Tristany stated that this STEAP grant application is only 
for the lighting project so that it can be completed.  There are no additions such as façade programs.  He stated 
that we applied for $380,000 so the project can be completed.  

C. Discussion and update of MSIF grant  

M. Tristany  stated  that he has been on  line  looking  for  the announcement of  the 2015 MSIF grant program. 
When this grant is announced, we can apply for funds. 

D. Discussion and update of EDC Griswold Brochure 

M. Tristany stated that he has not heard from Maya  in two months about the brochure.   He stated he has not 
had  that much  time  to work on  it.    T. Giard  stated  that  it has not  come up  in  the Wednesday meeting.   C. 
Goodenough stated that we spoke about two brochures, one to invite businesses to the community and a one 
addressing  tourism.   M. Tristany  stated  that Maya  is working on  the  tourist one.   He  stated  that Donna was 
working on updating  the brochure  that was designed by a previous consultant and we were  tweaking  it.   M. 
Tristany stated that we would like to include Change Wind turbines and showing positive companies that are in 
town.  It would be nice to have a blurb about the farms that are agribusiness for the business version.  T. Giard 
stated that this would be eventually. P. Lach stated that the show Pickers was at the Wildowsky Farm.   There 
was discussion of this matter including a local television magazine type show to highlight Change Wind.  

7. Other Matters 

M. Tristany stated  that  the representative  from Providence & Worcester Railroad spoke at  the meeting.   This 
Frank has been sending companies to  look at Griswold. M. Tristany stated that P & W  is eager to provide rail 
service to Griswold. 

M.  Tristany  stated  that  Jim  Bardia  asked  about  building  a  building  on  the  grass  area  at  Wyre  Wind  to 
accommodate the overhead cranes that would run the  length of the building because the Wyre Wynd ceilings 
are not high enough.  M. Tristany stated that the existing Wyre Wynd building can become part of an Industrial 
Park for Griswold and Jewett City. He stated that Jim Bardia has reviewed the legal documents and is waiting for 
a signature after the elections  in November and that  if Change Wind reaches 150 employees, half of this  loan 
will be forgiven. 

T. Giard asked if there was money available to upgrade the railroad siding.  M. Tristany stating that there is the 
Tiger Program that the Railroad can help us with.  P. Lach stated that the P & W representative had a lot of good 
information about the current market  is for propane tank farms and commodities.   M. Tristany stated that he 
was interested in Jim Bardia's project because Jim talked about bringing in rolled steel. 

T. Giard stated that the November meeting will be cancelled because it will be the same night our presentation 
to business owners.   C. Goodenough stated  that he has created a  flyer  for a Local Business Summit.   T. Giard 
stated  that  it will be 6  to 8 pm. at AmericInn on November 19, 2014.   He  stated  that  the banks who will be 
speaking are working on getting 3 or 4 speakers  for  this event  that will have  tables  that people can speak  to 
these  representatives  about  growth.  P.  Lach  asked  if  EDC will have  a  table.    T. Giard  stated  yes  and  that C. 
Goodenough will take care of that. 

C.  Goodenough  stated  that  he would  like  to  get  8  speakers who will  speak  for  15 minutes  but  that  these 
speakers will be talking through the whole event; these speakers will go back to the table and the people who 
had questions would ask them for information and answers to their questions.  T. Giard stated that he felt that 
the who two hour gap not be filled so that people will have time to talk to people but still have time to listen to 
other speaker. P. Lach asked how many rooms there are.  M. Tristany stated that tables are on the first floor and 
the speakers will be upstairs. C. Geer stated that 15 minutes is a long time so the eight speakers could speak for 
5 or so minutes. There was discussion of this matter. 

 



 

Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting  October 15, 2014  Page 3 of 4 
 

T. Giard stated that the Dollar General is open.  M. Tristany stated that there will be a grand opening tomorrow.  
He stated  that the construction  there  is top shelf and they  followed our  landscaping regulations to a tee.   He 
stated that the front sides have been sodded and the back was hydro seeded.  C. Geer stated that the building 
next to it to elaborate on the electrical contractor interested in the property. 

M. Tristany stated that an electrical contractor is interested and would like to put a 2000 sq. ft. addition to store 
electrical equipment and will match the architecture.  M. Tristany stated that P & Z asked them to put a cupola.  
P. Lach asked why the businesses left.  T. Giard stated that here were poor business decisions. 

T. Giard stated that K. Skulczyck, first selectman has arrived. 

T. Giard stated that Putnam has a program where a business can purchase a sign on a street pole. He stated that 
the town will have a policy on that with a fee structure that can be produced by the town DPW.   K. Skulczyck 
stated that there could be a pole with several signs on a pole. J. Barney stated that there are some on the corner 
of Hopeville Road and Edmond Road. There was discussion on this matter. 

P. Lach asked if the conduits will be covered up for the gravel. M. Tristany stated that the sidewalks will be done 
all at once because you can't get a concrete truck to do a very small  job.   T. Giard asked dif they were almost 
done. M. Tristany  stated  that  they are near  the bakery but  lost  some days  for  the weather and  the holiday. 
There was discussion of this matter. 

M.  Tristany  stated  that  there  was  a  commission  member  at  planning  and  zoning  about  the  mixed  use 
development had a concern with multifamily development.  He stated that the P & Z held the hearing open to 
next month.  He stated that we should discuss the mixed used that would contain more than just residential but 
have  some  retail,  some  residential,  some  restaurant  like  a neighborhood. He  asked  the  commission  to  think 
about how this should be reworded for the next meeting. C. Geer stated that the language was designed for the 
large PWC parcel to complement the UCFS building.  M. Tristany stated that the mixed use text was designed for 
the  large PWC parcel.   C. Geer stated  that we should decide  the best use  for  this site overlooking  the water.  
There was discussion of this matter including something like a water walk.  J. Barney stated he envisioned upper 
scale housing along the river and that will the value of the property and follow with mixed use such as offices, 
restaurants and some retail as you move to the street. He stated that he was hoping that the vision group would 
be looking at this to create a good tax base. 

T. Giard stated to give the planner  latitude to work on the  language.   M. Tristany stated that he will send out 
new language to the members.  C. Goodenough asked about remediation for the large site.  M. Tristany stated 
that there would be Brownfield's money to  jumpstart that project. He stated that there will be excess money 
that may be above to transfer to  the  large parcel.   K. Skulczyck stated  that they contacted the  large property 
owners; Allen came  in and talked about the remediation for that site.   He stated that Tighe & Bond there  is a 
good chance  to  seek out  that additional  funding.   He  stated  that  those projects municipalities work with  the 
developers to get this done. S. K stated that the town scored highly for that property and there is good potential 
to go after funding for the large parcel. 

M.  Tristany  explained  that  the  topsoil  brought  it  was  tested  to  be  contaminated  with  pesticides  and  oil 
derivatives.    He  stated  that  the  site  at  Exit  86  was  loaded  with  pesticides  and  petroleum  bi‐products.  C. 
Goodenough stated that pesticides are a petroleum based product so it leaches into the soil. 

P. Lach stated that there is a vision for Griswold group that K. Skulczyck put a group together where the various 
commissions members came  together  to come up with a 10, 15, 20 year plan  for  the vision of Griswold.   He 
stated  that  if  someone has  ideas  for  this group  to bring  those  ideas  to  them  for  this vision group  to  look at 
revision of some town ordinances, involving school children.  The meeting will be on the 15th.  J. Barney stated 
that K. Skulczyck asked everyone to come up with 5 ideas for the next meeting.  He stated that he has 10 ideas 
already.  

C. Geer stated that she talked with Steve Becker  to sell the property next  to AmericInn  for a restaurant.   She 
called some restaurants who would consider that location.  She stated that she didn't know what it would take. 
She asked many people what would be a good restaurant near AmericInn.  K. Skulczyck stated that he is meeting 



 

Griswold Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting  October 15, 2014  Page 4 of 4 
 

with Kevin Brown who  is  looking for sites to take a tour of Griswold for a sports‐related restaurant. There was 
discussion of this matter including that it was a very hard sell to entice restaurants and al fresco dining. 

T. Giard stated that we need to put a package together. C. Goodenough stated that the town needs a theme tie 
the town together to attract business.  He talked about Fiddleheads which is a co‐op, putting a farmer's market 
at the park for a clean and green to attract people who what quality food.  

T. Giard stated that Mike Minarski, who was at the Wednesday meeting, wants to start a radio station in town.  
C. Geer asked where it will be located. T. Giard stated that it will be right on Main Street in a storefront.  P. Lach 
stated that he was looking for talk show hosts.  There was discussion of this matter  

K. Skulczyck stated that he received an email from P & W Railroad updating that he sent information to the gas 
company and  connected with  Jim Bardia and a  sign made up  to promote  that area as an  industrial park.    J. 
Barney stated that there can be tours such as the wind turbine plant and other places in town that can tie into 
stopping for a bite to eat.  K. Skulczyck stated that 25 kids from Ray Churchill's Eastern Connecticut Performing 
Arts are dressing up as vampires during Spooktopia at the park; and he stated that this can be the start to taking 
it  to  the next  level.   He stated  that when  they were  filming "Wishing and Hoping"; one of  the producers  is a 
Connecticut  Company  was  very  interested  in  the  vampire  theme  and  the  History  Channel  is  looking  for 
documentary project. There was discussion of this matter. 

8. Correspondence 

There was no correspondence. 

9. Adjournment 

T. Giard asked for a motion to adjourn. 
MOTION:   C. Goodenough moved  to  adjourn. C. Geer  seconded  the motion. All were  in  favor.  The meeting 
adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
  Donna M. Szall 
  Recording Secretary 


